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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Sledge House, little changed from the c.1860 original, .is a Gothic
style cottage.

Exterior: On a large lot, framed by fine trees, the Sledge House is a
large-scale cottage of one and a half stories and nearly square in floor plan
Its most striking features, and those which give it its Gothic flavor, are
the tall, steeply-pitched roof and the three tall triangular dormers which
pierce it. A one-story veranda, with pillars, railing, and decorations in
open-work cast iron, extends across the front of the house, The house is of
white. painted stuccoed brick, with walls about eighteen inches thick and with
dormers of clapboard. The windows, except those in the dormers, have blinds
(some now missing). There are two paneled, stuccoed interior chimneys at
each end. Pointed louvers in the dormers and gables provide attic ventila-
tion. The metal veranda roof has a marked concave curve with iron finjals
that decorate its roof line. Solid basement walls raise the house about
three feet off the ground.

The walnut double front door, which has wooden bosses and vertical
panels headed by a round arch, is framed by etched glass transom and side
lights. The same round arches and bosses are used in the deep jamb casing.
The single windows on either side of the door are both wide and high, almost
floor length, having six large panes; the second story windows are generally
six~over-six with small panes. The. back door, at the end of the central hall
is also double-leaved and has side lights.

None of the original dependencies remain in the back yard that appeared
on the W, W. Thomas map of Athens of 1874. A veranda ran across the back of
the house. After 1874, probably in the 1880's or 90's, a one-story wing was
added on each side in back, one providing a bath, the other a kitchen and
laundry. Two of the gabled back dormers were altered, probably at the same
time, as an upstairs bath was added. The wings have a steep roof consonant
with the main body of the house, and vertical corner moldings which curve
inward to form a molding running up the gable ends under the roof line.

Interior: As originally, the house consists of a wide central hall with
stairs, four large square rooms downstairs and four bedrooms upstairs plus a
smaller room in the middle dormer. Each room has a fireplace. The mantels
throughout are cast iron and all fireplace openings are rounded and fitted
for grates. The motifs of the front door are used on the interior doors:
round~-arched vertical panels and wooden bosses. Wide moldings, in cross-
section a series of convex curves, frame the door and window openings and
the striking ogee arch in the front hall, behind which rise the stairs. The
arch is hung with broad double doors, curved and pointed to fit the ogee
shape. All this woodwork is solid walnut, but it was unfortunately painted
white in 1950, except for the newel post and banister. The newel post com-
bines light oak and walnut in contrasting panels. A second bath was recently
added upstairs.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ThéfSledge House, built c¢.1860,. is an outstanding example of the.
Gothic style and is especially unusual since. it is located in Athens, one
of the most splendid Greek Revival oriented towns in Georgia.

Ferdinand Phinizy - land owner, money lender and reputedly Athens'
first millionaire - owned the Sledge House tract of land before 1860. In
1860 James A. Sledge, owner and editor of the Southern Banner, bought the
tract and at some point in time the house was built on the side that now
fronts on Cobb Street.: (It is not possible to prove whether Phinizy built
it before 1860, but it is most -likely, as traditionally thought, to have
been built by Sledge.) In 1866, however, Sledge mortgaged his property to
Phinizy and in 1868 the latter foreclosed. Phinizy then bought back the
house at the sheriff's sale and sold it to Lamar Cobb. The Sledge family
regained possession of the house in 1897, when E, D. Sledge bought it from
Mrs., Lamar Cobb, his mother-in-law. Since then the house has had a number
of owners.

Architecturally the Sledge House is an important example of the Gothic
style in the South, .Although the Gothic style enjoyed a wide vogue in the

Northeast and Midwest, fewer examples appeared in the South which remained more

faithful to the Greek Revival. The Sledge House is the only structure of
predominately Gothic inspiration in Athens which survives.

Just as the Greek Revival flourished on a rootstock of indigenous, or
Plantation plain architecture, so the Sledge House grew from the same
rootstock. The two room, central hall floor plan, the long verandas, the
window blinds, all were standard in the South for many decades. Other of
its features that are commonly found in mid-nineteenth century houses
include the plaster cove molding, the round-arch fireplace openings, the
elaborate cast iron of the veranda and the carvings on the staircase
stringer. Among the unusual features of the house are the concave curve of
the veranda roof, the cast iron mantels, and the unique interior woodwork
including the heavy walnut molding framing the hall agee arch, the door and
window openings and the tall walnut doors with their characteristic round-
arch and boss design.

Presently the Sledge House is located on a pleasant, tree-shaded
street, but one in transition. The former residence next dooxr has been
converted to a clinic by a group of doctors who have also recently purchased
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